## Workterra User Guide

### Introduction

Workterra is the State of Rhode Island's online benefits enrollment system. Access Workterra to:

- Review and/or update demographic information for yourself and your dependents
- Add/remove dependents from your record
- Enroll in/waive/make changes to State benefits medical/dental/vision coverage, general and limited health flexible spending accounts (FSA and LFSA), life insurance, dependent care spending accounts and legal coverage
- Waive medical coverage and elect the medical waiver opt-out payment
- Manage health savings account (HSA) payroll deduction amounts (initiate, change, cancel)
- Upload supporting documentation

OPEN ENROLLMENT: During the open enrollment period, you can access Workterra to add dependents to your Workterra record and make/change benefits elections as many times as you like. The deadline is 11:59pm eastern on the last day of the open enrollment period.

NEW EMPLOYEES & QUALIFYING EVENTS: If you are a new employee or you experience a qualifying event during the plan year, you may enroll in coverage or make changes to your coverage elections <u>WITHIN 31 DAYS</u> of your employment start date or qualifying event date. If you fail to make elections in your 31-day period, you will not be able to change your benefits elections until your next open enrollment period unless you experience a qualifying event first.

Note: When using Workterra to process a qualifying event, you may NOT make changes at the PLAN level for a coverage that you had already enrolled in.

• Example: If you had enrolled in Anchor Plus, so long as your qualifying event is consistent with your requested change, you may switch from single coverage to family coverage and vice versa, but you may NOT switch to Anchor or Anchor Choice.



### Before you begin

If you plan to add any NEW dependents to Workterra, be sure to gather all necessary information for each person before you begin your enrollment process:

- Date of birth
- Social security number
- Supporting documentation as shown on <u>www.employeebenefits.ri.gov/enrollment/supporting-documentation.php</u>
- 10-digit PCP National Provider Identifier (if you have preferred PCPs)
  - > See <u>www.employeebenefits.ri.gov/documents/pcp-id-instruction.pdf</u> for stepby-step instructions for finding your 10-digit PCP NPI(s)

Special note for adding a newborn: You will not have an SSN or birth certificate immediately after your child is born. Please make sure to get a "proof of birth" document from the hospital where you child is born and upload that in Workterra when adding your child. Then add your child's SSN and birth certificate later by uploading them to your Workterra account or emailing them to the Office of Employee Benefits at <u>doa.enrollmenthelp@hr.ri.gov</u>.



### **Table of Contents**

Step 1a: Logging in	4
Step 1b: Change initial password	6
Step 2: Select your appropriate workflow	9
Step 3: Employee demographics	12
Step 4: Dependents	13
Step 5: United Way	16
Step 6: Deferred Compensation	17
Step 7: Short Term Disability	18
Step 8: Select medical coverage	19
Step 9: Select dental & vision coverage	27
Step 10: Select FSA/LFSA contributions	28
Step 11: Basic Life Insurance	30
Step 12: Supplemental Life Insurance	31
Step 13: Select DCSA contributions	33
Step 14: Legal Coverage	34
Step 15: Review elections	35
Step 16: Upload documents	36
Step 17: Confirmation statement	37
Appendix 1: Review/change your plan elections	38
Appendix 2: Review PCP designation(s)	40
Questions?	42



### Step 1a: Logging in

Open an internet browser and go to <u>sori.workterra.net</u>. Turn off any pop-up blockers.



**NEW HIRES:** Use the below credentials the first time you log on to Workterra.

Login Credentials	
User Name	First initial of your first name, your full last name (no hyphens, apostrophes, spaces or titles), last four digits of your SSN
	Example: if your name is John O'Brien-Johnson, Jr. and the last four digits of your SSN are 1234, your User Name would be "jobrienjohnson1234"
Password	First five digits of your SSN. (You will change this upon first login. Be sure to write down your new password!)
Company	Rhode Island (not case sensitive, but the space between "Rhode" and "Island" is required)



QUALIFYING EVENTS: Your user name and company will be the same as the login credentials listed above, but your password will be whatever you most recently set it to. If you do not remember your password, you can request a One-Time password reset. Reference page 6 for details.

OPEN ENROLLMENT: During open enrollment, your password will be reverted back to the default credentials applicable for new hires and you will be required to designate a new password after your initial log-in.

> Need help logging into Workterra/resetting your password? Contact the BCBSRI State Employee CARE Center at (401) 429-2104 or 1-866-987-3705. CARE Center hours are Mon-Fri, 8am-8pm and Sat, 8am-12pm.



### Step 1b: Change initial password

\*\*\* Only applicable if you are accessing Workterra for the first time as a new hire or for the first time during open enrollment. You may also change your password at any time by clicking "Change Password" off your dashboard.

Select your security questions and enter your answers.

Create a new password for future logins. Your password must:

- Contain at least one letter
- Contain at least one lowercase letter
- Contain at least one uppercase letter
- Contain at least one number
- Contain at least one special character
- Be a minimum of 10 characters

hange Password			
Instructions			 
<ul> <li>Password must contain at least one letter</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>Password must contain at least one lowercase character</li> </ul>			
Password must contain at least one uppercase character			
Password must contain at least one number			
Password must be MINIMUM of 10 Characters.			
User ID : gtest6666			
*Security Question 1			
Select Security Question	~	*Security Answer 1	
Select Security Question	~	*Security Answer 2	
Security Question 3			
Select Security Question	*	Security Answer 3	
*New Password		*Confirm Password	

Be sure to write down your new password and keep it in an easily accessible place!



### Step 1b: One-Time Password Reset

\*\*\* Only applicable if you have attempted to access Workterra and have forgotten your password and have exceeded the number of attempts allowed. You can request a One-Time Password at any time by clicking "Forgot Password."

User Name Your username will be the first initial of your first name + your full last name + the last four numbers of your Social Security Number	
Password Your initial password will be the first five numbers of your Social Security Number	
Please note: Once you log in, you will be prompted to change this password and it will no longer be the first five numbers of your Social For password assistance please contact the BOREDI OADE Contract Add. 400 0404 or 855	
BEDSHI CARE Center at 401-429-2104 07 066- 987-3705. The CARE Center's hours are Monday - Friday 8am-8pm and Saturday 8am- 12pm	
Company Name The company name is "Rhode Island" LOGIN	
Forgot Password?	

After selecting "Forgot Password" you will need to enter your User ID and Company name and select "Next."





### Step 1b Continued: One-Time Password Reset

The One-Time password (SMS) will be sent by email. You will be prompted to enter your authentication code received via SMS.

One Time Passw	vord	
Enter your authentica	tion code received	via SMS
Enter OTP		
04.54		
04:54		
	Cancel	Submit

Email Address: To use the one-time password option, a valid email address is required. If you do not have a valid email on file, and need assistance with resetting your password, please contact the State of Rhode Island Employee Care Center at (401) 429-2104 or (866) 987-3705. Care Center hours are Monday - Friday, 8am - 8pm and Saturday, 8am- 12pm.

One Time Password				
To use the one-time password option, a valid e with resetting your password, please contact ti CARE Center hours are Monday, Eriday 8m	mail address is requi he State of Rhode Isla	red. If you do not hand Employee Care	ave a valid email on f Center at (401) 429-2	file, and need assistance 2104 or (866) 987-3705.
Enter your authentication code received via Email	opmand Saturday, o	am- izpin.		
Enter OTP				
03:24				
	Cancel	Submit		



### Step 2: Select your appropriate workflow

#### If you're a <u>newhire</u>

When you log into Workterra for the first time, you will see the Welcome Page. Check the "Employee Usage Agreement" and "Legal Agreement" boxes and click "Continue" at the bottom of the page to proceed.

/elcome Page		
Welcome Guide Test		
New Hire Welcome Page		
Welcome to the State of Rhode Island Workterra site.		
This website is your portal for managing your dependent information the site. During the year you may log in and view your benefit state	and your medical/prescription, dental, vision, FSA, group term life insurance and legal coverage benefits plan elect nent and benefit-related materials at any time. You would also use this portal to process an election change should	ions. You can now make these elections in you experience a qualifying event during the
plan year. Please visit the Office of Employee Benefits website for benefits infor	mation and videos, as well as to talk to ALEX, a web-based decision support program provided by the State.	
Be sure to make your benefits elections within 31 days of hire. If you	I miss this window of opportunity, you will have to wait until the next open enrollment period to enroll in coverage,	unless you experience a qualifying event.
If you should have any questions, please contact your HR administra how to navigate while in the site.	tor or the Office of Employee Benefits. For your convenience we have attached an employee user guide in the Form	s Library should you have any questions on
Instructions		
Please click on each of the links below to review and accept the	agreements before proceeding through the enrollment tunnel.	
Employee Usage Agreement Legal Agreement		

If you're a new hire during open enrollment, you must click the "Finish" button on your confirmation statement page after you complete your new hire elections in order to proceed to your open enrollment election workflow and make elections for the next plan year. If you do not proceed to your open enrollment election workflow, your medical, dental, vision, life and legal elections will carry over to the next year, but FSA/LFSA/dependent care spending account elections will not - you must make FSA/LFSA/dependent care spending account elections for the next plan year in the open enrollment election workflow.



#### If you've experienced <u>a qualifying event outside of open</u> <u>enrollment</u>

On your Workterra user dashboard, click the "Initiate Qualifying Event" button. Choose the appropriate event and enter the event date. Check the "Employee Usage Agreement" and "Legal Agreement" boxes and click "Continue" to proceed.





#### If you're in <u>openenrollment</u>

When you log into Workterra for the first time during open enrollment, you will see the Open Enrollment Welcome Page. Check the "Employee Usage Agreement" and "Legal Agreement" boxes and click "Continue" at the bottom of the page to proceed.

• Instructions	
Please click on each of the links below to review and accept the agreements before proceeding through the enrollment tunnel.	
Employee Usage Agreement 🥑 Legal Agreement	
Forms Library	Continue

#### If you've experienced <u>a qualifying event during open</u> <u>enrollment</u>

Click the "Click here FIRST if you wish to open a Qualifying Event to change benefits for the CURRENT plan year" link at the bottom of the Open Enrollment Welcome Page to process a qualifying event enrollment/election change during open enrollment.

Nelcome Page	
Welcome One Test	
Open Enrollment	Nelcome Page
Welcome to the State of Rhode Isla	d Workserw Open Enrollment sitel
You will have until 11/20/2020 to materials at any time. You would al	make obspaces to assisting elections or to evoid in mediciference/outputs, devices, and the medical sector of the
If you or a dependent have rece	thy experienced a qualifying event and you would like to enroll in coverage or change your coverage elections now for the remainder of the 2020 plan year, please click on the "Initiate QE during OE workflow" below in BLUE.
Please visit www.employeebenefits.	i.gov for benefits information and videos, as well as to talk to ALEX; the State's web-based decision support program.
Be sure to make your benefits elect	ons before the close of Open Enrollment on 11/20/2020. If you miss this window of opportunity, you will have to wait until the next open enrollment period in Fall 2021 to enroll in coverage or make changes to existing elections, unless you experience a qualifying event.
If you have any questions, please c	ntact your HR administrator or the Office of Employee Benefits.
	₹.
Instructions	
Please click on each of the links	below to review and accept the agreements before proceeding through the enrollment tunnel.
Employee Usage Agreement	✓ LepiAgreenent



### Step 3: Employee demographics

Review your information for accuracy. Make sure your phone number is up to date and the email address is a personal email address you use regularly.

If changes are necessary to any fields other than phone number and email address, please email <u>doa.enrollmenthelp@hr.ri.gov</u>.

#### Updating your phone number

When entering your phone number, please enter 10 NUMBERS ONLY - no spaces or

punctuation such as dashes or parentheses.

0emographics							
Please review your information for accurate must provide the updated information to y	cy. If changes are necessary to ar rour employing agency HR office.	y fields other than ph This will update your	one number and emai personnel record which	l address, please en h will in turn update	ail doa.enrollmenthelp@hr.ri.gov. your Workterra record.	However, please note that to change your nam	e or address, you
Please make sure your phone number is u	p to date and the email address i	s a personal email ado	iress you use regularly	. PLEASE USE A PER	SONAL EMAIL ADDRESS ON THIS	PAGE. This email address may be used by the	States benefit
partners to contact you or provide you wit	n further information. If you need	to update your phon	e number, piease ence	r 10 numbers only (	no dashes or other punctuation).		
First Name Guide	Middle Name	/Initial		Last Name Test		Title Select Title	
Employee ID	Gender Male		Date of Birth 01/01/1980	m	Social Security No. XXXXX66666		
Street Address 1 1234 Main Street			In format, mm/dd/yyyy	Street Address 2	9 dígits - no dashes / spaces		
City Providence	State R1		Postal Code		Country USA		
Extension	Home Phone 5055055055	Work Phone	In format, 200000 or 2000	"Email Address Tester@Testerte	st.com		
Date of Hire 08/30/2021		-					
monose, and do you							
Effective Date 08/30/2021							

PLEASE USE A PERSONAL EMAIL ADDRESS ON THIS PAGE. This email address may be used by the States benefit partners to contact you or provide you with further information.

#### Updating your name/address

To change your name or address, you must provide the updated information to your employing agency HR office. Please email <u>doa.enrollmenthelp@hr.ri.gov</u> to update your personnel record which will in turn update your Workterra record.



### Step 4: Dependents

# Reviewing/updating dependents' demographic information

If you want to review or update any dependents' demographic information, click the pencil icon under "Action" beside each dependent's name on the Spouse and/or Child page.

If you are not adding any NEW dependents, and all dependent information is accurate, click Skip to proceed.

#### Adding dependents

To add a spouse or a child, click "Add New" of "Add Another Child" on the Spouse or Child page and enter their demographic information.

- When adding a child, please select only "Natural Child" or, if your child is over 26 and handicapped, "Disabled Child". If selecting "Disabled Child" for a handicapped dependent over age 26, please also select "Yes" in the Disabled Child field.
- Foster children, grandchildren, and children of domestic partners are NOT eligible for coverage unless the employee has adopted them, or the coverage is court-ordered.

If you add any NEW dependents, you must also submit supporting documentation for them. See "Step 16: Upload documents" on page 35 for details.

8					Welcome - Guide Test (Employ	ee) 🕣 🗸
Spouse Child						
					Viewas: 🗰 < Page 1	• of 1 >
Name	Age as on today	Relationship	Date of Birth	SSN No	Remarks Benefits Covered	Action
📌 Child Test	2 years	Natural child	01/01/2019	XXXXX5555		1
					Back Add New Co	ntinue



#### Ex-spouse eligibility & dropping a spouse due to divorce

**NEW HIRES:** Ex-spouses are not eligible for coverage.

QUALIFYING EVENTS: To drop a spouse due to divorce, click the pencil icon under "Action" on the Spouse page, then change the Relationship status to "Ex-spouse" on the Spouse Demographics page. This change will be pended for administrator review and you will need to supply a copy of your final divorce decree (see "Step 16: Upload documents" on page 35). If the change is approved, any current coverage will be immediately terminated, and COBRA will be offered to your ex-spouse so long as the final divorce decree was issued in the previous 31 days. If the final divorce decree was issued more than 31 days prior, COBRA will not be offered.

pouse Child							
						Viewas: 🇰 < 🛛 F	Page 1 💙 of 1
Name	Age as on today	Relationship I	Date of Birth	SSN No	Remarks	Benefits Covered	Action
Spouse Test	41 years	Spouse (	01/01/1980	XXXXXX6666			1
						Back Add New	Continue
*If you are adding a Common Law Sp *If your Spouse has a different addre Please note that after you add a new	ouse, but you are unable to provide a copy of your mo sis than yours please email <b>doa.enroilmentheip@hrf.</b> w Spouse or Domestic Partner to your account on th	ost recent federal income tax filing (Forr gov for assistance updating this inform <i>is page, you must also check the boxes</i>	n 1040) showing married-joint ation. next to their name under the o	or married-separate tax filin desired coverage plans on th	status, the dependent ma "Select Your Benefit Plan	Welcome - Guide Test (E ay still qualify for coverage as a Don ns" page if you want to add them to	nestic Partner.
If you are adding a Common Law Sp     Wryour Spouse has a different addre     Please note that after you add a new     dit Spouse     This Name     Sonure	souse, but you are unable to provide a copy of your mo ess than yours please email doa.enrollmenthelp@hrfl. w Spouse or Domestic Partner to your account on th	ost recent federal income tax filing (Forr gov for assistance updating this inform, is page, you must also check the boxes	n 1040) showing married-joint ation. next to their name under the o under the their name and the o next Name Test	: or married-separate tax filin desired coverage plans on th	status, the dependent m	Welcome - Guide Test (E ys still qualify for coverage as a Don ns <sup>#</sup> page if you want to add them to	nestic Partner.
If you are adding a Common Law Sp     Wyour Spouse has a different addre     Please note that after you add a nee     dit Spouse     "First Name     Spouse	souse, but you are unable to provide a copy of your mc ess than yours please email doa.enroilmenthelp@hrfl. w Spouse or Domestic Partner to your account on th	ost recent federal income tax filing (Forr gov for assistance updating this inform. Is page, you must also check the boxes al	m 1040) showing married-joint ation. 	or married-separate tax filin	status, the dependent m	Welcome - Guide Test (E ys still qualify for coverage as a Don ns <sup>*</sup> page if you want to add them to	o your coverage.
"If you are adding a Common Law Sp "If your Spouse has a different addre Please note that after you add a ner dit Spouse "First Name Spouse Title Select Title	ouse, but you are unable to provide a copy of your mc sis than yours please email doa.enroilmentheip@tr.rl. w Spouse or Domestic Partner to your account on th 	ost recent federal income tax filing (For gov for assistance updating this inform is page, you must also check the boxes al	n 1040) showing married-joint attion. next to their name under the o "Last Name Test	or married-separate tax filin	status, the dependent m	Welcome - Guide Test (E ay still qualify for coverage as a Don ns <sup>+</sup> page if you want to add them to	npiloyee, a v
"If you are adding a Common Law Sp     "If your Spouse has a different addre     Please note that after you add a nee     dit Spouse     "First Name     Spouse     Title     Select Title     "Social Security No.	souse, but you are unable to provide a copy of your mc ess than yours please email doa enrollmenthelp@hrfl. w Spouse or Domestic Partner to your account on th Middle Name /Initi 	ost recent federal income tax filing (For gov for assistance updating this inform. Is page, you must also check the boxes al	m 1040) showing married-joint ation. 	or married-separate tax filin	status, the dependent ma "Select Your Benefit Plan	Welcome - Guide Test (E yy still qualify for coverage as a Don ns <sup>+</sup> page if you want to add them to	npoyeer of version and the second sec
If you are adding a Common Law Sp If your Spouse has a different addre Please note that after you add a nee dit Spouse  Finst Name Spouse TitleSelect Title  Social Security No. XXXX6666	souse, but you are unable to provide a copy of your mc ess than yours please email doa enrollmenthelp@hrfl. w Spouse or Domestic Partner to your account on th Middle Name /Initi 	ost recent federal income tax filing (For gov for assistance updating this inform is page, you must also check the boxes al al "Date of litch Q1/Q1/1280	m 1040) showing married-joint ation. 	or married-separate tax filin	status, the dependent ma "Select Your Benefit Plan	Welcome - Guide Test (E yy still qualify for coverage as a Don ns <sup>+</sup> page if you want to add them to	npoyeer of version provide the second s
<sup>1</sup> If you are adding a Common Law Sp <sup>1</sup> If your Spouse has a different addre Please note that after you add a nee dif Spouse dif Spouse Title	ouse, but you are unable to provide a copy of your mc ess than yours please email doa enrollmenthelp@hrfl. w Spouse or Domestic Partner to your account on th Middle Name /Initia 	ost recent federal income tax filing (For gov for assistance updating this inform. Is page, you must also check the boxes al al "Date of Birth OL/OJ/1980 Informat moliciy	m 1040) showing married-joint ation. 	or married-separate tax filin	status, the dependent ma "Select Your Benefit Plan	Welcome - Guide Test (E yy still qualify for coverage as a Don ns <sup>*</sup> page if you want to add them to	npoyeer of version provide the second s
<sup>1</sup> If you are adding a Common Law Sp <sup>1</sup> If your Spouse has a different addre Please note that after you add a nee dit Spouse <sup>1</sup> Finst Name Spouse <sup>1</sup> Title <sup>1</sup> Social Scority No. XXXXX6666 <sup>2</sup> Siglist - no Satistic / spaces Status Active <sup>1</sup>	ouse, but you are unable to provide a copy of your mo ess than yours please email doa enrollmenthelp@hrfl. w Spouse or Domestic Partner to your account on the Middle Name /Initia Select Relationship Spouse Ex-Spouse Domestic Partner Common Law Spouse	ost recent federal income tax filing (For gov for assistance updating this inform. Is page, you must also check the boxes al al "Date of Birth OL/O1/1980 Informat metably	m 1040) showing married-joint ation. 	or married-separate tax filin	status, the dependent ma "Select Your Benefit Plan	Welcome - Guide Test (E ys still qualify for coverage as a Don ns <sup>*</sup> page if you want to add them to	ppolycer of an estic Partner.
*I'r you are adding a Common Law Sp *I'r your Spouse has a different addre Please note that after you add a new ditt Spouse *First Name Spouse *First Name Spouse TitleSelect Title *Social Security No. 20000X6666 D Øgits -rodsuber /spoce Status Active Street Address 1 12:34 Main Street	ouse, but you are unable to provide a copy of your mo ess than yours please email doa.enrollmenthelp@hrfL w Spouse or Domestic Partner to your account on the Middle Name /Initia Select Relationship Spouse Ex-Spouse Domestic Partner Common Law Spouse	ost recent federal income tax filing (For gov for assistance updating this Inform is page, you must also check the boxes al 	n 1040) showing married-joint ation. next to their name under the "tast Name Test" "" "" Street Address 2	or married-separate tax filin	status, the dependent m "Select Your Benefit Plan	Welcome - Guide Test (E ys still qualify for coverage as a Don ns" page If you want to add them to	ppolyeer of v
** I' you are adding a Common Law Sp ** I' your Spouse has a different addre Please note that after you add a new dit Spouse **The Name Spouse **The Name Spouse **Select Title **Select Title *Select Tit	ouse, but you are unable to provide a copy of your mo ess than yours please email doa.enrollmenthelp@hrfL w Spouse or Domestic Partner to your account on the Middle Name /Initia 	ost recent federal income tax filing (For gov for assistance updating this inform is page, you must also check the boxes al al "Date of Birth O1/O1/1980 Informat remotify State R1	m 1040) showing married-joint ation. next to their name under the o "Last Name Test	or married-separate tax filin	status, the dependent ma "Select Your Benefit Plan	Welcome - Guide Test (E ys still qualify for coverage as a Don ns <sup>*</sup> page if you want to add them to	ppolycer () v
** I' you are adding a Common Law Sp ** I' your Spouse has a different addre Please note that after you add a new dit Spouse **First Name Spouse **Tota **	ouse, but you are unable to provide a copy of your mo ess than yours please email doa.enroilmenthelp@hrfl. w Spouse or Domestic Partner to your account on the 	ost recent federal income tax filing (For gov for assistance updating this inform is page, you must also check the boxes al al "Date of Birth O1/O1/1980 Informat emology State RI	n 1040) showing married-joint ation. next to their name under the o "Last Name Test" """ Street Address 2	or married-separate tax filin	status, the dependent ma "Select Your Benefit Plan	Welcome - Guide Test (E wy still qualify for coverage as a Don ns" page if you want to add them to	npiloyeej y 🗸



**OPEN ENROLLMENT:** If your divorce was finalized before January 1, 2014 and you've been covering your ex-spouse since divorce, and you drop them from your coverage during open enrollment, they will be removed from your coverage as of January 1 of the following year and COBRA will not be offered because it is a voluntary drop of coverage during open enrollment. If you voluntarily drop your ex-spouse from your coverage, you will not be able to add them back at any time in the future.

If your divorce was finalized after January 1, 2014, you may not cover an ex-spouse under your State employee health plan. However, if your divorce was finalized before that date and you accidentally dropped your ex-spouse from coverage by changing their relationship code from "Spouse" to "Ex-Spouse," please return to the Spouse page, change the Relationship status to "Spouse," and contact the Office of Employee Benefits (see page 35) for further assistance.



### Step 5: United Way

#### **Reviewing United WayInformation**

Click on the link or use the QR code to access the United Way's website and schedule a regularly occurring charitable donation from your paycheck to the United Way of Rhode Island. This is managed exclusively by the United Way of Rhode Island and questions should be directed to them at (401) 444-0600.

Click "Continue" to proceed.

Charitable Giving Through United Way of Rhode Island

Every year, state employees team with the United Way of Rhode Island to support hundreds of local non-profits doing good work in our communities.

State employee participation in this annual campaign makes an enormous difference to these organizations who count on our support to further their missions. Please consider a payroll deduction to support your favorite charities. Sign up at https://uwriweb.org/RIState, or use this QR code for easy access from your mobile device.





### Step 6: DeferredCompensation

#### **Reviewing Deferred Compensation Plan Information**

The State's deferred compensation plan is a voluntary retirement savings plan that allows employees to make pre-tax payroll contributions to an account at Fidelity, TIAA or Voya. The page in Workterra is purely informational and enrollment is coordinated through the Retirement@Work platform. Review the available information and click on the link for Retirement@Work (a separate website) if you would like to enroll. Alternatively, you may call Retirement@Work at 855-200-0135 to enroll.

Click "Continue" to proceed.

**Deferred Compensation Plan** 

The State's deferred compensation plan allows employees to accumulate tax-deferred savings for retirement. Employees can elect automatic payroll deductions (subject to IRS annual maximums), and they may enroll and/or make changes to their contributions at any time during the year. Employees may invest their contributions with one, two or all three investment providers: Fidelity, TIAA and Voya. A deferred compensation plan account should not be viewed as a regular checking/savings account. Funds contributed to the deferred compensation plan generally cannot be accessed until after termination of State employment. The primary exception to this rule is a severe financial hardship caused by an unforeseeable emergency, but this would need to be applied for and is a relatively high standard to meet. See the 457 Plan summary/FAQ for more detailed information. Employees enroll in the deferred compensation plan and manage their contribution amount elections using the Retirement@Work platform. Log into Retirement@Work at www.retirementatwork.org/1. Employees may also call Retirement@Work at 855-200-0135. For help navigating the Retirement@Work experience, please review the Retirement@Work Quick Start Guide. Please note that new employees will not be able to log into Retirement@Work until after they've received their second paycheck. Special note for non-classified employees of the State's higher education system - while the State's deferred compensation plan does not use the Retirement@Work platform at all. If you have any questions this separate deferred compensation plan for non-classified higher education plan also exists for your benefit. It is administered independently of the state's plan and does not use the Retirement@Work platform at all. If you have any questions this separate deferred compensation plan for non-classified higher education employees, please contact your HR office. Enrollment in this benefit can occur at any time during the year - it is not tied to open enrollment or any other enrollment



### Step 7: Short Term Disability

#### **Reviewing Short Term Disability Information**

State employees do not pay into the State's temporary disability insurance ("TDI") fund and are not eligible to receive TDI benefits if they experience an off-the-job accident or illness. If you want protection for your income above and beyond the State's sick and vacation leave accrual policies, you may consider purchasing a short-term disability policy through Aflac or Colonial Life. Aflac policies are available to all employees and Colonial Life policies are only available to employees represented by NEA-RI, AFSCME-Council 94, AFT, SEIU, IFPTE, LIUNA-Local 808, RIBCO or URI/AAUP. The page in Workterra is purely informational and enrollment is coordinated directly through the vendors. Review the available information and click on the link for Aflac or Colonial Life if you would like to enroll. Alternatively, you may call Aflac or Colonial Life at the numbers listed on the page.

Click "Continue" to proceed.

Short Term Disabi	ity Insurance		
As a State employee, you DC policy which can be paid for	) NOT pay into the State's temporary disability insurance program (TDI). If you would like to protect y through converient payroll deductions.	our income against covered off-the-job accident or sickness beyond the protection provided by the State's sick and vacation ti	ime accrual policy, you may want to consider purchasing a voluntary short-term disability
Two vendors are authorized and Colonial Life are NOT te	to sell these policies to State employees: Aflac and Colonial Life. Aflac is generally available to all emp chnically State employee benefits. The State does not have any control over the policies that Aflac and	loyees, whereas Colonial Life is only available to select union employees (NEA-RI, AFSCME-Council 94, AFT, SEIU, IFPTE, LIU d Colonial Life sells, nor does it play any role in administration of the policies other than allowing a payroll deduction for premi	NA-Local 808, RIBCO or URI/AAUP). Please note that policies sold to employees by Aflac ums.
Enrollment is completed dire	ectly with the carriers (links at the bottom).		
Key Features Benefits are paid directly to Your coverage is fully portab Your premium rates stay the Coverage Information	you, regardless of any other disability insurance you may have. de (e.g., you can kees the same plan even if you switch jobs or leave State employment), same unless you make changes to your plan.		
	Aflac (Non-union or any union emolowes)	Colonial Life (Select union employees only*)	
Plan Offering	Off-job accident or sickness coverage	Off-job accident or sickness coverage	
Monthly Benefit Amount	\$500-\$5,000''' (in \$100 increments)	\$400-\$6.500** (in \$100 increments) Maximum income replacement: 60% of salary	
Benefit Periods	3, 6, 12, or 24 months	3, 6, 12, or 24 months	
Elimination Periods*** (accident/sickness)	0/7, 0/14, 7/14, 0/30, 30/30, 60/60, 90/90, 180/180	0/7, 7/7, 0/14, 14/14, 0/30, 30/30, 60/60, 90/90, 180/180	
Premium Rates	Your premium rates can range from a few dollars to over a hundred dollars per pay period depend	ing on your age, salary, benefits period, and elimination periods. Please contact Aflac or Colonial Life to receive an exact quote	
Coverage Termination	Coverage terminates at age 70, even if you are still employed.	Coverage terminates on the policy anniversary following your 70th birthday.	
* Represented by NEA-RI, AI ** Subject to income require *** Elimination period is the	"SCME-Council 94, AFT, SEIU, IFPTE, LIUNA-Local 808, RIBCO or URI/AAUP. ments and benefit period restrictions. number of days following a disability before benefits begin. Choice of elimination periods depends on 1	the benefit period selected.	
Enrollment / Contact			
Please contact the Aflac or C	colonial Life RI office below to enroll or obtain additional information regarding coverage options and	plan costs. Make sure you identify yourself as a State of Rhode Island employee.	
Aflac: Call (401) 475-99 Colonial Life: Call (866)	36 or visit Aflac's State of Rhode Island webpage. 349-8011 or visit Colonial Life's State of Rhode Island website.		



### Step 8: Select medical coverage

#### To <u>enroll</u> in medical coverage

When you reach the Medical section, scroll to the plan that you want, make sure to click the plus sign next to EACH person that you want to enroll so they are highlighted, and then click "Enroll Now" or "Keep Plan."

"Keep Plan" will only be available if it is the plan, you are currently enrolled in. That plan will be outlined in green with an "Enrolled" indicator in a green bubble to the right of the plan name. For new hires and employees enrolling into coverage due to a qualifying event, only "Enroll Now" will be available.

Blue Cross Blue Shield dFrodeisland	Anchor Plus Plan (Effective Dat	te: 01/01/2024)			
Eligible Members: Please make:	sure to select each dependent yo	ou wish to enroll.			
Guide Test Employee	Spouse Test Spouse	Child Test Natural child			
Total Cost: (Per pay period)					
Total Employee Cost:			\$268.13	Total Employer Cost:	\$804.38
					Enroll Now
Blue Cross Blue Shield dfPodelsland BCBSRI	Anchor Choice HSA Plan (EP	fective Date: 01/01/2024)			
Eligible Members: Please make:	sure to select each dependent yo	ou wish to enroll.			
Guide Test Employee	Spouse Test Spouse	Child Test Natural child			
Total Cost: (Per pay period)					
Total Employee Cost:			\$248.79	Total Employer Cost:	\$746.37
					Enroll Now

You must CLICK THE CHECK BOX next to EACH person that you want to enroll under the desired plan! They will then be highlighted in dark blue. Anyone whose name is not highlighted will NOT be enrolled under that particular plan.



#### If you are Rite Share Eligible

RIte Share is Rhode Island's Premium Assistance Program that helps certain employees pay for employer's health insurance plan. Employees who are eligible will be notified by OHHS of their eligibility.

Eligible employees will receive a letter with instructions to enroll in a State employee medical plan.

To enroll based on your Rite Share letter, go to your Workterra user dashboard, click the "Initiate Qualifying Event" button. Choose the "Rite Share Eligibility "event and enter the event date as shown on your eligibility letter.



When you reach the Medical section, scroll to the plan indicated on your eligibility letter, make sure to click the plus sign next to EACH person that you want to enroll so they are highlighted, and then click "Enroll Now" or "Keep Plan."

Blue Cross Blue Shield of Prodelsland	RI Anchor Plus Plan (Effective Dat	te: 01/01/2024)			
Eligible Members: Please make	e sure to select each dependent yo	u wish to enroll.			
Guide Test Employee	Spouse Test Spouse	Child Test Natural child			
Total Cost: (Per pay period)					
Total Employee Cost:			\$268.13	Total Employer Cost:	\$804.38
					Enroll Now
Blue Cross Blue Shield Blue Shield BCBSR	RI Anchor Choice HSA Plan (Eff	fective Date: 01/01/2024)			
Blue Cross Blue Shied di Ritode Isind Eligible Members: Please make	RI Anchor Choice HSA Plan (Eff	fective Date: 01/01/2024) u wish to enroll.			
Bue Cross Bue Shed diRude Shed diRude Shed diRude Shed BCBSR BCBSR BCBSR BCBSR BCBSR BCBSR BCBSR BCBSR BCBSR BCBSR BCBSR	RI Anchor Choice HSA Plan (EH e sure to select each dependent yo Spouse Test Spouse	fective Date: 01/01/2024) u wish to enroll. Child Test Natural child			
Eligible Members: Please make Guide Text Employee Total Cost: (Per pay period)	RI Anchor Choice HSA Plan (Em e sure to select each dependent yo Spouse Test Spouse	fective Date: 01/01/2024) u wish to enroll. Child Test Natural child			
Eligible Members: Please make Grinde Stady difficultisat Employee Total Cost: (Per pay period) Total Employee Cost:	RI Anchor Choice HSA Plan (err e sure to select each dependent yo Spouse Test Spouse	Rective Date: 01/01/2024) u wish to enroll. Child Test Natural child	\$248.79	Total Employer Cost:	\$746.37

**IMPORTANT NOTE!** The cost for employee health insurance coverage listed on this page does not reflect any subsidy amount. Please refer to your RIte Share eligibility letter for premium amount.

You must CLICK THE CHECK BOX next to EACH person that you want to enroll under the desired plan! They will then be highlighted in dark blue. Anyone whose name is not highlighted will NOT be enrolled under that particular plan.



#### Designate PCP(s)

You will be asked to designate a primary care provider (PCP) for each person you enroll in a medical plan:

- You may designate preferred PCP(s) yourself...
  - Find their 10-digit PCP ID number(s) by following the Step-by-Step Instructions on www.employeebenefits.ri.gov/documents/pcp-id-instruction.pdf
  - > Enter the ID number(s) for EACH person that will be covered under your medical plan in the "Medical Primary Care Physician Code" field.
    - Spaces, letters or special characters are NOT allowed in the ID field.
    - Be sure to check the "Existing Patient" box if you are an existing patient of the PCP.
- ...OR, you may have PCP(s) automatically designated based on where you live
  - > Leave the ID field blank and check "Auto Allocate".
  - Please note: If you choose this option, your initial BCBSRI medical ID card will say "PCP Required" on it, and the auto-allocation will not actually occur until 30 days after the plan effective date.
    - You will have 30 days from the plan effective date to choose a PCP for yourself and others on your plan.
    - If you take no action within this 30-day window, BCBSRI will then assign a PCP to you and each covered member of your family.
    - You can change your PCP at any time during the plan year by calling the BCBSRI State of Rhode Island Employee CARE Center (see page 41) or by accessing your online account at <u>mybcbsri.com</u>.

If you are using Workterra during open enrollment or because of a qualifying event, your PCP's ID number should already be listed. Simply save and proceed with the workflow. If you would like to change your assigned PCP, don't do it here - please contact BCBSRI's CARE Center instead.



CP Information (BCBSRI Anchor Choice HSA Plan)		
Instructions		
To view the[Blue Cross Blue Shield of Rhode Island ] provider directory click here.      To auto allocate PCP Code by Provider please select Auto Allocate checkboy for members		
Please use the Blue Cross Blue Shield of Rhode Island provider directory link above to locate	the Medical Primary Care Physician code. Once you locate your PCP in the directory, click on	the name to find the National Provider ID (NPI). This 10-digit NPI code will need to be entered
Into the "Medical Primary Care Physician Code" box below for each covered member. Please	scroll down on this page to designate a PCP for each covered member.	
PCP information updated as of 10///2020. If you are currently enrolled in an Anchor Plan and need to make a change in your PCP, pleas	call the State of RI CARE Center at (401) 429,2104.	
Guida Tast - Employee		
Cuide rest - Employee		
Medical Primary Care Physician Code	Existing Patient	Auto Allocate
L		
Spouse Test - Spouse		
Medical Drimany Care Divisician Code	Existing Patient	Auto Allocate
Medica Prinary Care Physician Code		

If you have multiple family members, be sure to SCROLL DOWN in the PCP pop-up box to enter PCP designations for every person.

#### To review PCP designation(s)

See "Appendix 2: Review PCP designation(s)" on page 39 for instructions on how to review your PCP designation(s) after you have finished the enrollment process.



#### If enrolling in Anchor Choice with HSA

If you enroll in the Anchor Choice plan, a health savings account (HSA) will be automatically opened for you so you must confirm your eligibility to contribute to an HSA and your understanding of responsibility with respect to IRS rules governing HSA contributions on the "HSA Eligibility" and "HSA Contributions" pages respectively. Then you will have the option to schedule pre-tax HSA payroll contributions by entering a per-paycheck contribution amount and clicking "Enroll Now" in the lower right of the "Health Savings Account" section. If you do not want to contribute to your HSA through payroll deductions, click "Waive" in the upper right of the "Health Savings Account" section.

or the convenience of its employe	ees, State of Rhode Island permits employees enrolled in the State's high deductible health plan (HDHP) offering to voluntarily deduct funds on a pre-tax basis from their paychecks to fund their Health Savings Account (HSA). Al
e State of Rhode Island handles t	he deduction and transmits the funds to a third-party administrator, ALL aspects of managing and maintaining the HSA are the responsibility of the employee.
erefore, my agreement below inc	ficates that I ameligible to contribute to an HSA because:
I am enrolled in the State's And	hor Choice Plan which is an HSA-eligible HDHP.
I am not enrolled in any other h	realth plan that is not a HDHP (this includes a general-purpose health flexible spending account).
I am not enrolled in Medicare (	including Part A), TRICARE or TRICARE for Life.
I am not claimed as a depender	it on someone else's tax return.
I have not received VA benefits	s within the past three months, except for preventive care (this exclusion does not apply if you are a veteran with a disability rating from the VA).
I have not received VA benefits any of the above eligibility provis you proceed with enrollment int	swithin the past three months, except for preventive care (this exclusion does not apply if you are a veteran with a disability rating from the VA). sions do not apply to you, you are ineligible to contribute to an HSA (and receive State HSA contributions) and you should strongly consider enrolling in either the Anchor Plus Plan or Anchor Plan for your medical/prescription or o the Anchor Choice Plan with HSA and make your own HSA contributions or receive any of the State's HSA contributions, you may be in violation of IRS rules.
I have not received VA benefits any of the above eligibility provis you proceed with enrollment int you do not agree to this form, ple 166ATigbliry.Agreement	swithin the past three months, except for preventive care (this exclusion does not apply if you are a veteran with a disability rating from the VA). sions do not apply to you, you are ineligible to contribute to an HSA (and receive State HSA contributions) and you should strongly consider enrolling in either the Anchor Plus Plan or Anchor Plan for your medical/prescription co o the Anchor Choice Plan with HSA and make your own HSA contributions or receive any of the State's HSA contributions, you may be in violation of IRS rules. ase go back and enroll in the Anchor Plus Plan or Anchor Plan.
I have not received VA benefits any of the above eligibility provie you proceed with enrollment int you do not agree to this form, ple "HSA Tligblity Agreement ===SELECT===	swithin the past three months, except for preventive care (this exclusion does not apply if you are a veteran with a disability rating from the VA). sions do not apply to you, you are ineligible to contribute to an HSA (and receive State HSA contributions) and you should strongly consider enrolling in either the Anchor Plus Plan or Anchor Plan for your medical/prescription or o the Anchor Choice Plan with HSA and make your own HSA contributions or receive any of the State's HSA contributions, you may be in violation of IRS rules.
I have not received VA benefits any of the above eligibility provis you proceed with enrollment int you do not agree to this form, ple "HSATE;blirk Agreement ===SELECT===	swithin the past three months, except for preventive care (this exclusion does not apply if you are a veteran with a disability rating from the VA). sions do not apply to you, you are ineligible to contribute to an HSA (and receive State HSA contributions) and you should strongly consider enrolling in either the Anchor Plus Plan or Anchor Plan for your medical/prescription or o the Anchor Choice Plan with HSA and make your own HSA contributions or receive any of the State's HSA contributions, you may be in violation of IRS rules.
I have not received VA benefits any of the above eligibility provis you proceed with enrollment into you do not agree to this form, ple "HEA Eligibility Agreement ===SELECT===	swithin the past three months, except for preventive care (this exclusion does not apply if you are a veteran with a disability rating from the VA). sions do not apply to you, you are ineligible to contribute to an HSA (and receive State HSA contributions) and you should strongly consider enrolling in either the Anchor Plus Plan or Anchor Plan for your medical/prescription or o the Anchor Choice Plan with HSA and make your own HSA contributions or receive any of the State's HSA contributions, you may be in violation of IRS rules.
I have not received VA benefits any of the above eligibility provis- rou proceed with enrollment into rou do not agree to this form, ple "HAELIgibility Agreement ==SELECT===	swithin the past three months, except for preventive care (this exclusion does not apply if you are a veteran with a disability rating from the VA). sions do not apply to you, you are ineligible to contribute to an HSA (and receive State HSA contributions) and you should strongly consider enrolling in either the Anchor Plus Plan or Anchor Plan for your medical/prescription or o the Anchor Choice Plan with HSA and make your own HSA contributions or receive any of the State's HSA contributions, you may be in violation of IRS rules. sase go back and enroll in the Anchor Plus Plan or Anchor Plan.



A Contributions	
S annual contribution limits apply. You risk paying IRS tax penalties if you exceed these limits. Please review the current limits on www.employeebenefits.ri.gow/hss. Contributions to your HSA from the State of Rhode Island, as well as an Slimit applicable to you. If you elect to make HSA contributions, your contribution amount will continue until you change or cancel your contribution amount. Money you elect to contribute to your HSA out of your paycheck will be forw. MB Bank. You can visit www.bcbsri.com or call 401-429-2104 or 1-866-987-3705 for more information and to access your account.	iy other source, count towards the arded to BCBSRI's banking partner,
sur agreement below indicates that:	
<ul> <li>I am responsible for adhering to the Federally-established HSA contribution limits and funds access rules as summarized in IRS Publication 969, which can be found on the IRS website at www.irs.gov.</li> <li>I understand that I may be liable for tax penalties if I exceed the applicable limit(s) or do not comply with IRS rules related to HSAs.</li> <li>I understand that the State only makes employer HSA contributions in January and July and there is no prorating for employees hired after those dates. I must have been a State employee covered by the Anchor Choice Plan with H receive the applicable State iSA contribution.</li> <li>I authorize the State of Rhode Island to deduct the amount I specify in Workterra from each of my paychecks for deposit to my HSA.</li> <li>I understand that this deduction in Continue for the duration of my employment and enroliment in the State's HDHP offering, or until I adjust my contribution amount in Workterra.</li> <li>I understand that this deduction request replaces any previous HSA payroll deduction.</li> <li>I authorize the State of Rhode Island to recover from my HSA any employment share contributions that may be incorrectly contributed to my HSA due to any processing error or error in the determination of my HSA eligibility.</li> </ul>	HSA as of January 1 or July 1 to
100 da watawa da tila fanna alawa an bada walin tin Angkas Din Dina na Angkas Dina	
You do like agree to uns for its prease go back aim ein of in the Arkino. Frank Arkino, Frank	
14ACothicking Agreement ===5ELECT==	~
01/01/2024	
0 <u>1</u> 0 <u>1</u> 2024	elcome - Active TEST(Employee) 🔊
O101/2024	elcome - Active TEST(Employee) 🔊
0101/2024       Health Savings Account	elcome - Active TEST(Employee) 🔊
01/01/2024       W       Image: State of the sta	elcome - Active TEST(Employee) (AT
01/01/2024         Image: International Control of the state of t	elcome - Active TEST(Employee) (AT
0101/2024 ■ Health Savings Account You may letcup to \$3,850 for employee-only coverage and up to \$7,750 for family coverage. You may increase this by \$1,000 if you are over age \$5. Please do not enroll in more than \$599.99 per pay period. STATE-FAS CONTRIBUTION NOTE:	elcome - Active TEST(Employee) (AT Waive
OUD2024  V  Place do not erroll in more than \$999.99 per pay period.  STATE HSA CONTRIBUTION NOTE:  Place do not erroll in more than \$999.99 per pay period.  STATE HSA CONTRIBUTION NOTE:  Place and that the State's \$1.500/individually\$2,000 (Jamily HSA contributions are not accested for employees who erroll after those dates.	elcome - Active TEST(Employee) (AT Waive
01/01/2024         Image: Interpret to the State's S1.500 (Individual)/S2.000 (family)/HSA contributions are made biannually with half deposited on January I and the other half deposited on July 1. The State's HSA contributions are not provated for employees who enroll after those dates.	elcome - Active TEST(Employee) (1) Waive
OUD2024       With the state of the state o	elcome - Active TEST(Employee) (AT

Total Employee Cost: \$0.00 /Per pay period



Total Annual Election : \$0.00

Enroll Now

#### To <u>waive</u> medical coverage

In the Medical section, scroll down until you reach the "Waive Medical" plan option. Click "Enroll Now" and fill out the Waiver of Medical and Pharmacy Coverage form on the next page.

Elizible Members: Please make sure to select each depen	dent you wish to enroll	
Guide Test - Employee Spouse Test - Spouse 😣 G	hild Test - Natural child 💿	
Total Cost · (Per pay period)		
Total Employee Cost :	\$164.24 Total Employer Cost :	\$656.98
		Enroll Now
Blue Cross Blue Shield of Dirota Island Waive Medical (Effective Date: 08/	/30/2021)	
Eligible Members:		
Guide Test - Employee		
Total Cost : ( Per pay period )		
Total Employee Cost :	\$0.00 Total Employer Cost :	\$0.00
		Enroll Now
	Copyright © 2021 Rhode Island for new UI. All Rights Reserved	Back
	Copyright & 2021 Rhode Island for new UI. All Rights Reserved	Back
	Copyright © 2021 Rhode Island for new UI. All Rights Reserved	Back
	Copyright © 2021 Rhode Island for new UI. All Rights Reserved	Back
	Copyright © 2021 Rhode Island for new UI. All Rights Reserved	Back
	Copyright © 2021 Rhode Island for new UI. All Rights Reserved	Back
	Copyright © 2021 Rhode Liland for new UI. All Rights Reserved	Back
produktion produktion and produktion produktion and	Copyright © 2021 Rhode Liland for new UL All Rights Reserved	Back
	Copyright 6 2021 Rhode Liand for new UL All Rights Reserved	Back
	Copyright 6 2021 Rhode Liand for new UI. All Rights Reserved	Back
		Pack
		Back



.

Sant Centra

### Step 9: Select dental & vision coverage

#### To enroll in dental/vision coverage

In the Dental/Vision sections, scroll down to the plan(s) that you want, make sure to click the Check Box next to EACH person that you want to enroll, and then click "Enroll Now" or "Keep Plan."

"Keep Plan" will only be available if it is the plan you are currently enrolled in. For new hires and employees enrolling into coverage due to a qualified status change, only "Enroll Now" will be available.

You must CLICK THE CHECK BOX next to EACH person that you want to enroll under the desired plan! They will then be highlighted in dark blue. Anyone whose name is not highlighted will NOT be enrolled under that particular plan.

#### To <u>waive</u> dental and/or vision coverage

Click the "Waive" button that is at the TOP of the dental/vision sections.

Dental					Additional Tools Waive
"IMPORTANT"" Please be su PECIAL NOTE FOR PART-TIM. he salary amounts loaded in V alary, not part-time wages earn mployee, please contact your	re to check the box next to the nan E EMPLOYEES: Workterra are the full-time annual is ned. However, non-classified college ed. However, non-classified college college HR office for additional info	ne of each dependent you wish to add to the c ialaries for given job classifications, and the h ge part-time employee co-shares are based or ormation.	overage so that they are highlighted ealth plan premiums (co-shares) disp a part-time wages earned. As such, W	in blue, then confirm your dependents are covered by revi layed in Workterra are based on these amounts. Classified forkterra may display an inaccurate co-share amount for a	ewing your Confirmation Statement. I and unclassified part-time employees' co-shares are based on job classification full-tim non-classified college part-time employee. If you are a non-classified college part-time
DELIZA DENTAL	nor Dental (Effective Date: 01/01/2	024)			
Eligible Members: Please ma Guide Test Employee	ske sure to select each dependent Spouse Test Spouse	t you wish to enroll.			
Total Cost: (Per pay period) Total Employee Cost:			\$10.25	Total Employer Cost:	\$30.74
					Enroll Now



### Step 10: Select FSA/LFSA contributions

Please note the following eligibility criteria for the two types of FSAs:

- General health FSA ("FSA"): If you are covered under the Anchor or Anchor Plus medical plans (or other non-HSA-qualified high deductible health plan coverage)
- Limited health FSA ("LFSA"): If you are enrolled in the Anchor Choice Plan with HSA (or another HSA-qualified health plan)

#### To enroll in or waive a <u>health</u> FSA

If you would like to open an FSA/LFSA for the following/remainder of the plan year, enter your desired **annual** contribution amount in the "Yearly Coverage" box, then click "Enroll Now". Your per-pay-period contribution will be automatically calculated for you.

If you do not want to open an FSA/LFSA, click the "Waive" button that is at the TOP of the Flexible Spending Account section.

Flexible Spending Account	Additional Tools
You can elect to set aside up to \$2,850 to be deducted in equal amounts from each paycheck on a pre-tax basis. The minimum contribution amount is \$130.	
<ul> <li>Please note that any amount over \$550 in your FSA/LFSA at the end of the year will be forfeited (amounts \$550 and under will automatically be rolled over after Ap previously contributed unless you elect to continue your FSA under COBRA.</li> </ul>	oril 1 of the following year). Also, please note that if you leave State service during the year you will lose access to funds y
<ul> <li>Please note the following if both the general FSA (FSA) and limited purpose FSA (LFSA) are available for election below. An LFSA should be elected only if you are co qualified dental and vision expenses. A general FSA is not compatible with an HSA and should be elected if your medical coverage is not an HSA-qualified high dedu</li> </ul>	overed under an HSA-qualified high deductible health plan, as an LFSA is compatible with an HSA and can only be used fo ctible health plan. A general FSA can be used for qualified medical, prescription, dental and vision expenses.
<ul> <li>If outside open enrollment, your biweekly deduction amount listed below may be adjusted due to the timing of your election during your enrollment window and pustement.</li> </ul>	ayroll system processing. Therefore, the per pay period amount shown below may not match the actual deduction on you
Yearly Coverage	
Yearly Coverage	
Yearly Coverage	



and the second

**STATUS CHANGES:** When processing a qualifying event in Workterra to decrease/eliminate your bi-weekly contribution amount moving forward, the amount you enter in the "Yearly Coverage" box should include what you have already contributed to your FSA up to that point in time. If you are increasing your bi-weekly contribution amount moving forward, the resulting per-pay-period contribution amount displayed in Workterra should take into account your prior contributions up to that point in time. Please contact the Office of Employee Benefits (see page 29) for assistance processing an FSA qualifying event.



### Step 11: Basic Life Insurance

You will have the opportunity to enroll in or waive life insurance. You will have option to elect basic life insurance (coverage equals your salary amount rounded to next highest \$1,000, up to a maximum of \$150,000). If you elect basic life insurance, you will also have the option to elect supplemental life insurance as well. Supplemental life insurance provides the same coverage as basic life insurance, so if elected, it will double your life insurance coverage to two times your salary amount up to a maximum of \$300,000 total.

NEW HIRES: Please note that per statutory mandate, you are automatically enrolled into basic life insurance. When you make your initial benefits elections in Workterra, you have the option of waiving basic life insurance or adding supplemental coverage.

Basic Life Insurance		Walve
Litte insurance is 100% employee-poid.		
<ul> <li>Guaranteed issue life insurance is only available to new employees during their 31 day new e Hartlerd (Medical.ow@hartlordPrc.com) asking you to complete a medical quantionnaire. The</li> </ul>	mpløyee enrollment window. The life insurance you elect below is subject to T a Hartford will then approve or deny your application for coverage.	te Hartford's evidence of insurability requirements. Once you submit your election you will receive an email from The
<ul> <li>If you short life insurance coverage below, your premium will reflect as \$0.00 because you do the coverage is approved by The Hartford, are reflected under your name in the "COVERAGE"</li> </ul>	nat yet have the life insurance - you must first satisfy The Hartford's evidence. " section of your Enrollment Summary and Confirmation Statement pages.	fire urability requirements. The policy value ("Elected Coverage") and premium to be deducted ("EE enst"), assuming the second
Once your coverage has been approved by The Hartford, to reviewitssign/change your benefit Hartford, you will receive an automated small from The Hartford with a link to the portal and approved through their evidence of insurability process.	Islary. The Hartford portal is enroll.thehartfordatwork.com/sor/bern or you m / your login credentials. If you're making a life insurance election during open a	y call (155) 296-7655. If you are a new life insurance enroller, after your election in Wurkterra passes to The realment, you will need to wait until the beginning of the new year to access. The Hartford's portal (assuming you are
Basic Life (Thefine Date 010102004)		
Eligible Members:		
Guide Test Employee		
Select Coverage \$150,000,00 Cost will be calculated on current coverage		
	Current Coverage: \$0.00	Elected Coverage: \$150,000.00 (Employee Cost \$30,15)
Total Cost: (Per pay period)		
Total Employee Coat	\$0.00 Total Employer Cost	(Post-Tac): \$0.00
		Keep Plan

EVIDENCE OF INSURABILITY: If you waive basic life insurance coverage and want to add it and/or supplemental coverage at a later date, you are considered a late applicant and will need to provide evidence of insurability (EOI) to the State's life insurance carrier after submitting your election in Workterra. "Providing EOI" usually only means completing a medical history questionnaire, but the State's life insurance carrier may request additional information/documentation. Life insurance coverage for late applicants is not effective unless and until the State's life insurance carrier approves the application. The EOI process is handled entirely by the State's life insurance carrier.



### Step 12: Supplemental Life Insurance

If you elect basic life insurance, you will also have the option to elect supplemental life insurance. There are two levels of supplemental coverage which each provide the same amount of coverage as basic life insurance. So, if only one level of supplemental coverage is elected, it will double your life insurance coverage to two times your salary amount up to a maximum of \$300,000 total. If both levels of supplemental coverage are elected, it will increase your overall life insurance coverage up to the lesser of three times your salary amount Or \$450,000.

Supplemental Life Insurance			Walve
+ Lite insurance is 100% employee-paid.			
<ul> <li>Guaranteed insue life insurance is only available to new employees during their 31-day new en Hartford [Mcdicalum@hartfordfile.com] adding you to complete a medical questionnaire. The</li> </ul>	nployee enrollment window. The life insurance you e Hartford will then approve or deny your applicatio	elect below is subject to The Hartford's evidence of insurability require in for coverage.	ments. Once you submit your election you will receive an email from The
<ul> <li>If you elect life insurance coverage below, your premium will reflect as \$0.00 because you don the coverage is approved by The Harthord, are reflected under your name in the "COVERACE"</li> </ul>	tot yet have the life insurance - you must first satisfy anotion of your Enrollment Summary and Confirma	y The Hartford's evidence of insurability requirements. The policy value tion Statement pages.	: ("Elected Coverage") and premium to be deducted ("EE cost"), assuming
Once your onverage has been approved by The Hartford, to review/andipr/sharge your been Hartford, you will receive an automated email from The Hartford with a link to the portal and approved through their evidence of Insurability process).	ulary, The Hartford portal is an oll the hartfordatee your login credentials. If you're making a life insura	rk.cmm/nor/here or you may call (651) 396-3635. If you are a new life in nce election during open enrollment, you will need to wait until the begi	surance enrollee, effer your election in Worktern pesses to The inning of the new year to access The Hartford's portal (assuming you are
Supplemental Life - \$300K Maximum (BriteSive Date: 05/02/2004			
Eligible Members: Guide Test Engloyee Select Comrage \$190.000.00			
Cost will be calculated on carrent: coverage	Current Coverage: \$0.00	Elected C (Employe	overage: \$190,000.00 e Cost \$9.56 }
Total Cost: (Per pay period)	50.00	Total Employer Cost/Inst.Tark	\$0.00
For the stringer of the sound to	2000	neuri ampropri anergi en mol.	2000
			Enroll New



Please note: When electing the 2-times-salary of supplemental coverage, the "Total Cost: (Per pay period)" will reflect the biweekly premium for 1-times-salary level of supplemental coverage. The biweekly premium cost for the 2-times-salary level will be reflected to the right under "Elected Coverage."

y supplemental the insurance				۱ ۱
Please note that after your election in Workterra passes to The Hartf automated email from The Hartford with a link to the portal and your	ord, you will be able to login to The Hartford portal and see you policy value an login credentials. If you have made a life election in Workterra and are unable	name your beneficiaries. If you are a new hire or new life o login to The Hartford portal, this likely means your life e	insurance enrollee, when your life election is loaded into The Hartfore election has not yet passed to The Hartford – please wait until the next	d's system you will rec Thursday and try aga
To review/assign/change your beneficiary, The Hartford portal is enrol	II.thehartfordatwork.com/soribene or you may call (855) 396-7655.			
Supplemental Life - \$300K Max	dmum (Effective Date: 01/01/2023)			
Eligible Members:				
Active TEST - Employee				
Active TEST - Employee Select Coverage				
Active TEST - Employee Select Coverage \$100,000,00 ~ Cost will be calculated on current				
Active TEST - Employee Select Coverage \$100,000.00 Cotwill be calculated on current coverage	Current Coverage: \$50,000.0	0	Elected Coverage: \$100,000.00 (Employee Cost \$25.62)	
Active TEST - Employee	Current Coverage: \$50,000.0	1	Elected Coverage: \$100,000.00 (Employee Cost \$25.62)	
Active TEST - Employee Select Coverage S100,0000,00 ~ Cot vill be calculated on current coverage Total Cost: (Per pay period) Total Employee Cost:	Current Coverage: \$50,000.0 \$12.81	Total Employer CostiPost-Tax):	Elected Coverage: \$100,000.00 (Employee Cost \$25.62)	

EVIDENCE OF INSURABILITY: If you want to add or increase supplemental coverage at a later date, or if you initially waived all coverage and want to elect some level of coverage at a later date, you are considered a late applicant and will need to provide evidence of insurability (EOI) to the State's life insurance carrier after submitting your election in Workterra. "Providing EOI" usually only means completing a medical history questionnaire, but the State's life insurance carrier may request additional information/documentation. Life insurance coverage for late applicants is not effective unless and until the State's life insurance carrier approves the application. The EOI process is handled entirely by the State's life insurance carrier.



### Step 13: Select DCSA contributions

You will have the opportunity to make contributions to a DCSA. If you would like to open a DCSA for the following/remainder of the plan year, enter your desired **annual** contribution amount in the "Yearly Coverage" box, then click "Enroll Now". Your perpay-period contribution will be automatically calculated for you.

If you do not want to open a DCSA, click the "Waive" button that is at the TOP of the Dependent Care Spending Account section.

+) Dependent Care Spending Account	Additional Tools Wait
o If you file your federal income taxes as an individual or as married-joint, you c separate, you can elect a maximum of \$2,500. The minimum contribution amou	elect to set aside up to \$3,000 to be deducted in equal amounts from each paycheck on a pre-tax basis. Per IRS rule, if you file your federal income taxes marr is \$130.
<ul> <li>If outside open enrollment, your biweekly deduction amount listed below ma may not match the actual deduction on your pay statement.</li> </ul>	e adjusted due to the timing of your election during your enrollment window and payroll system processing. Therefore, the per pay period amount shown bel
2022 Dependent Care Spending Account (Effe	live Date: 01/01/2023)
Yearly Coverage	
Tabl Fundament Cash \$0.00 (Decamerated	
Total Employee Cost: \$0.007Per pay period	

STATUS CHANGES: For DCSAs, when processing a qualifying event in Workterra to decrease/eliminate your bi-weekly contribution amount moving forward, the amount you enter in the "Yearly Coverage" box should include what you have already contributed to your DCSA up to that point in time. If you are increasing your bi-weekly contribution amount moving forward, the resulting per-pay-period contribution amount displayed in Workterra should take into account your prior contributions up to that point in time. Please contact the Office of Employee Benefits (see page 39) for assistance processing a DCSA qualifying event.



### Step 14: Legal Coverage

You will have the opportunity to enroll in or waive legal coverage.

For legal coverage, you will have two plans available: Employee Only and Employee + Family. Please choose employee only if you wish to only coverage yourself and Employee + Family if you wish to cover any of your dependents as well.

If you do not want legal coverage, click the "Waive" button above the plan options.

Group Legar Care			v
MetLife Group Legal Care - Employee + Family (Effective Date: 01/01/2023)			
Eligible Members:			
Active TEST - Employee			
Total Cost: (Per pay period)			
Total Employee Cost:	\$4.78	Total Employer Cost:	\$
			Enroll No
MetLife Group Legal Care-Employee Only (Effective Date: 01/01/2022)			
Eligible Members:			
Active TEST - Employee			
Total Cost: (Per pay period)			
Total Employee Cost:	\$3.11	Total Employer Cost:	\$
Total Employee Cost:	\$3.11	Total Employer Cost:	5



### **Step 15: Review elections**

You will have the opportunity to review your medical, dental, vision, FSA/LFSA, life insurance, DCSA and legal coverage elections. If you want to make any changes to a particular coverage at this point, click the arrow at the top right corner of the respective benefit plan to return to that section. If you are ready to move on, click "Continue" in the lower right of the page.

lect Your Benefits	🖒 From your pocket
(i) Modici	×
Bus Dess Bus Back Becan Anchor Mus Man (7114 San 144 90(33)/7070)	
Coverset Mai bess Generative Mai bess Generative Spoce Text Spoces) Gala Bart (Mai and 1985	
Total Employee Cost II re-lax): \$1/2,/3/I or pay period	
⊕ Dental	v
Ander Derical Under Derical Under Jass UNDUZZEI	
Coverage Mei ber 1. Gold Tari (5 physic)	
Total Employee Cot ( Pre-Tax): \$3.36/Fer pay period	
	~
Ander Valen (attende Letter (2006) (1901)	
Coverage Members:	



### Step 16: Upload documents

After completing all of your elections, you will come to the Upload Documents page. Please attach any supporting documentation evidencing a NEW dependent's relationship to you or proving the occurrence of a qualified status change event.

To see the list of supporting documentation, visit <u>www.employeebenefits.ri.gov/enrollment/supporting-documentation.php</u>.

To upload a document, click the icon under "Action" under yourself or the dependent needing documentation, select your category on the popup, and click the upload icon to find the document on your computer, then click "Save and Continue" or "Add New" if more documents are needed. Once you are finished uploading all the necessary documents, click "Save" then "Continue".

The supported formats are: txt, pdf, rtf, ppt, pptx, xls, xlsx, doc, docx. The maximum file size is 4096 KB.

Upload Document		
Instructions		
To save all changes, please click on Save button		
If you added any dependents in this site, you will als children).	have to submit supporting documentation proving their relationship to you	(marriage certificate for spouse, domestic partnership evidence for domestic partner, birth certificates for
Please review the www.employeebenefits.ri.gov/en	ollment/supporting-documentation.php for the supporting documentation re	quired to approve your enrollments.
Please upload the necessary documents below to exp last four digits of SSN and/or date of birth on a fax of	edite approval. If you are unable to upload your documents to this portal, yo over sheet. If this information is r	u can fax the documents to the Office of Employee Benefits at (401) 574-9281. Please note your full name,
	Document Upload	×
	Select Category	×
Cont Name		
rinst rearing ✓ Guide	Upload Documents	± ±
✓ Spouse	Supported Formatar bit, doc, docv, ref. via, viav, horri, pef, jog, ong Upicad in Test	hit Migerike
✓ Child	Test Add New	Save & Continue
		Back Reset Save Continue
~		
W.		Welcome - Lisa Davison(Partner
Upload Document		
Instructions		

Ð	All your currently covered dependents (spouse, domestic partner, children) were pre documentation proving their relationship to you (marriage certificate for spouse, do	Document Upload	$^{ imes}$ nts in this site during the OE Period, you will also have to submit supporting
0	Please review the www.employeebenefits.ri.gov/enrollment/supporting-documenta	Note: Category name having asterisk (*) is required category.	
0	Please upload the necessary documents below to expedite approval. You may instea your documents to this portal or email them to the OEB, fax may also be an option. I	Employee Documentation   Note: Category name having asteriak (1) is required category.	loa.enrollmenthelp@hr.ri.gov, but upload is preferred. If you are unable to upload use fax instead.
0		Upload Documents 🕹	
10	First Name Last N		Action
	✓ Guide Test	Add New Save & Continue	÷



### Step 17: Confirmation statement

After completing all your plan elections, you will come to the Confirmation Statement. Be sure to review the following for accuracy:

- Demographic information for you and any dependents
- Plan elections and who's covered under each plan (in the ENROLLMENT SUMMARY section(s), NOT the Demographics section)

If anyone's name does not appear next to a <u>medical/dental/vision</u> plan in the ENROLLMENT SUMMARY section, it means that they are NOT covered under that plan!!

Return to Steps 5-6 to check the box next to anyone missing coverage.

The ENROLLMENT SUMMARY section may display differently for you based on your status as a new hire or an ongoing employee processing a status change or in open enrollment. For instance, if you're currently enrolled in coverage and are making some sort of change during open enrollment (adding/subtracting a dependent or changing plans during open enrollment), you will want to review the FUTURE ENROLLMENT SUMMARY section.

Keep a copy of the confirmation statement by clicking on the PDF button and/or the Print button at the top of the page.

• Forgot to save a copy? You can always log back into Workterra to review your elections (see page 34).

ONCE YOU HAVE COMPLETED REVIEWING YOUR ELECTIONS, CLICK "FINISH" AT THE BOTTOM OF THE PAGE. You should see a pop-up message confirming that you have completed the enrollment process.



# Appendix 1: Review/change your plan elections

#### **Review your confirmation statement**

You can log back into Workterra at any time to review your confirmation statement. On your User Dashboard, click "My Benefits" at the top then "Confirmation Statement" on the dropdown. Ignore any pop-up message about clicking the "Finish" at the bottom of your confirmation statement.





#### Change plan elections

If you want to make any changes within your enrollment period, the easiest way to do so is to click

the "Enroll Now" widget on your employee dashboard.

- Click "Enroll Now"
- Under "Select Effective Date", choose the appropriate event.
- Under "Benefit Type", click on the benefit that you would like to change. You will then be brought to the respective section to make your changes.
- Your new elections will be pended for administrator review and if you do not submit appropriate supporting documentation for your transaction, your new elections will be denied.

Home My Profile My Benefits Benefit Documents Reports	Welcome - Guide Test (Employee)	)~
:	Current Benefits	
	Out Of Pocket \$0.00, Per pay per	iod
v	📾 Quick Links	
	Eligibility Report	
<u>A</u>	Enrollment Report	
riege - essivora	Learn about your Benefits	
	Tools and Calculators	
iome My Profile <b>My Benefits</b> Benefit Documents Reports	Welcome - Guide Test (Employee) G	
✓ Select Benefit Type	vv	
	Home My Profile My Benefits Benefit Documents Reports	*       Select Benefit Type       *



### Appendix 2: Review PCP designation(s)

If you have finished the enrollment process but want to review your PCP designation(s) at a later time, the easiest way to do so is through the "Enroll Now" Widget:

- Click "Enroll Now" on the employee homepage.
- Under "Select Effective Date", choose the appropriate event. Under "Benefit Type", choose "Medical". You will then be brought to the Medical section.
- Scroll down to the plan that you had enrolled in. Click "PCP Information".
- Review your PCP designation(s) and make sure any applicable boxes are checked.
- If you have any questions or need assistance changing your PCP(s), please call the BCBSRI State of Rhode Island Employee CARE Center at (401) 429-2104 or 1-866-987-3705. CARE Center hours are Monday-Friday, 8am-8pm and Saturday, 8am-12pm.







nd/or your family! Talk with ALEX (www n on the Office of Employee Benefits web ach year).	myales.com/rhodeisland/2021), the State of Rhode Island's online decision support site (www.employeebenefitz.ri.gov) and off the "Additional Tools" link on the right si	Additional Tools
nd/or your family! Talk with ALEX (www n on the Office of Employee Benefits web ach year).	nmyalex.com/rhodeisland/2021), the State of Rhode Island's online decision support site (www.employeebenefits.ri.gov) and off the "Additional Tools" link on the right si	tool, visit the State's virtual benefits fair Je of this page. Please choose carefully as you will not
to add to the coverage, then confirm you	r dependents are covered by reviewing your Confirmation Statement. No changes will	be processed after your enrollment window should
1,500 (individual)/\$3,000 (family) HSA	contributions are made biannually with half deposited on January 1 and the other half	deposited on July 1. The State's HSA contributions
ns, and the health plan premiums (co-sha ne employee co-shares are based on part I information.	vres) displayed in Workterra are based on these amounts. Classified and unclassified p -time wages earned. As such, Workterra may display an inaccurate co-share amount f	vart-time employees' co-shares are based on job or a non-classified college part-time employee. If you
6475 72	Tatal Semilaran Cost :	\$70.00
<i></i>	total Employer cost .	ar our o
		Keep Plan
	,500 (individual)/52,000 (family) H5A. a, and the health plan premises (co-she employee co-shares are based on part information. \$175.73	5.500 (individual)/53.000 (family) HSA contributions are made kiannually with half deposited on January 1 and the other half s, and the half hplan premiums (or-shares) displayed in Worksera are based on these and pathogeness are based on part time wages earned. As such, Worksera may display an inscurate or-share annually information.



### **Questions?**

- If you need help with logging into Workterra / resetting your password, navigating Workterra, finding your PCP and their 10-digit NPI, or medical plan selection, call the BCBSRI State of Rhode Island Employee CARE Center at (401) 429-2104 or 1-866-987- 3705. CARE Center hours are Monday-Friday, 8am-8pm and Saturday, 8am-12pm.
- If you have questions about plan coverage specifically, please contact the respective plan administrators. You can find a list of contacts at <u>www.employeebenefits.ri.gov/contact</u>.
- If you have other enrollment-related questions, contact the Office of Employee Benefits:
  - > Email <u>doa.enrollmenthelp@hr.ri.gov</u>
  - > Call (401) 574-8530

